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          Windsor House 

By Email Only          Homes England – 6th Floor 
           50 Victoria Street 

London 
SW1H 0TL 

 
 
 
Dear  
 
RE: Request for Information – RFI3123 
 
Thank you for your request for information which was processed in accordance the Freedom of Information Act 
2000 (FOIA).  
 
You requested the following information:  
 
I refer to a facility agreement in the sum of £27,680,000, made in 2017, from the Homes and Community Agency and 
Lambeth council to Muse (Brixton) Ltd. The facility agreement relates to the construction of homes at Hambrook and 
Ivor House. I attach a copy of the charge for reference. 
  
Can you please provide me with the following information: 
  
1. How much of the £27,680,000 was provided by the Homes and Community Agency and how much was 
 provided by Lambeth council? 
2.      Was the loan purely a loan to the developer or was an element of it a grant in order to build affordable 
 housing? If there was a grant element, can you please tell me how much of this was for shared ownership 
 properties and how much was for social rent properties. 
3.      Can you please provide me with a copy of the facility agreement between the Homes and Community Agency 
 and Muse (Brixton) Ltd. 
 
Response 
 
We can confirm that we do hold information which falls within the scope of your request. We will address each o 
your points below in turn. 
 
1. How much of the £27,680,000 was provided by the Homes and Community Agency and how much was 
 provided by Lambeth council? 
 
We can confirm that we do hold this information, we can confirm that the amount of £27,680,000 was as below; 

- Homes and Communities Agency = £5,195,000 
- London Borough of Lambeth = £22,485,000 

 
This information is contained within Schedule 1 (The Original Lenders) of the Agreement. 
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2.  Was the loan purely a loan to the developer or was an element of it a grant in order to build affordable 
 housing? If there was a grant element, can you please tell me how much of this was for shared ownership 
 properties and how much was for social rent properties. 
 
We can confirm that the matter was a loan investment, there was no grant element attached to it. 
 
3.  Can you please provide me with a copy of the facility agreement between the Homes and Community 

Agency  and Muse (Brixton) Ltd. 
 
Please find enclosed to this response and labelled Annex A a copy of the Single Current Term Facility Agreement (the 
Agreement) dated 22 February 2017 between; 
 
(1) MUSE (BRIXTON) LIMITED 
(2) HOMES AND COMMUNITIES AGENCY AND LONDON BOROUGH OF LAMBETH  
(3) THE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS listed herein 
(4) TMF GLOBAL SERVICES (UK) LIMITED 
(5) TMF TRUSTEE LIMITED 
 
Section 43 - Commercial interests 
 
Some of the information contained within the Agreement engages section 43(2) of the FOIA as it is commercial in 
nature and its release would be likely to prejudice the commercial interests of Homes England and other interested 
parties to the information.  
 
Homes England is not obliged to disclose information that would, or would be likely to, prejudice the commercial 
interests of any party. 
 
Section 43 is a qualified exemption. This means that once we have decided that the exemption is engaged, Homes 
England must carry out a public interest test to assess whether it is in the wider public interest for the information to 
be disclosed. 
 
Arguments in favour of disclosure: 
 

• Homes England acknowledges there is a general public interest in promoting accountability, transparency, 
public understanding and involvement in how Homes England undertakes its work and how it spends public 
money. 

 
Arguments in favour of withholding: 
 

• Releasing the information could reveal financial information of a third party which may in turn affect their 
commercial interests; 

• Releasing information in relation to a third party in a competitive market would be likely to distort 
competition, making it a less competitive process, which would not be in the public interest; 

• Disclosure would result in third parties being deterred from including commercially sensitive information in 
future applications. This will mean that Homes England must evaluate applications that are less 
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comprehensive than would otherwise have been the case, meaning that Homes England’s ability to 
undertake due diligence on the applications for funding will be impaired. This will result in decision makers 
not taking all relevant information into account, meaning the decisions will be less robust and less likely to 
deliver value for money; and  

• Homes England has been unable to identify a wider public interest in disclosing the information requested. 
 
Having considered the arguments for and against disclosure of the information, we have concluded that at this time, 
the balance of the public interest favours non-disclosure. 
 
The full text of the legislation can be found on the following link; 
 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/36/section/43 
 
Section 40 – Personal information 
 
We have redacted and are withholding information on the grounds that in constitutes third party personal data and 
therefore engages section 40(2) of the FOIA.  
 
To disclose personal data, such as names, job titles and contact information could lead to the identification of third 
parties and would breach one or more of the data protection principles. 
 
Section 40 is an absolute exemption which means that we do not need to consider the public interest in disclosure. 
Once it is established that the information is personal data of a third party and release would breach one or more of 
the data protection principles, then the exemption is engaged. 
 
The full text in the legislation can be found on the following link; 
 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/36/section/40 
 
Right to Appeal 
 
If you are not happy with the information that has been provided or the way in which your request has been handled 
you may request an internal review by writing to; 
 
The Information Governance Team 
Homes England – 6th Floor 
Windsor House 
50 Victoria Street 
London 
SW1H 0TL 
 
Or by email to infogov@homesengland.gov.uk  
 
You may also complain to the Information Commissioner however, the Information Commissioner does usually 
expect the internal review procedure to be exhausted in the first instance.  
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The Information Commissioner's details can be found via the following link; 
https://ico.org.uk/ 
 
Please note that the contents of your request and this response are also subject to the Freedom of Information Act 
2000.  Homes England may be required to disclose your request and our response accordingly. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
The Information Governance Team 
For Homes England 
 

 

 

 



DATED 21. f-e€:B,_vfhQ.1 2017 

(1) MUSE (BRIXTON) LIMITED

{2) HOMES AND COMMUNITIES AGENCY AND 
LONDON BOROUGH OF LAMBETH 

acting as Arrangers 

(3) THE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS listed herein
as Original Lenders 

(4) TMF GLOBAL SERVICES (UK) LIMITED
acting as Agent 

(5) TMF TRUSTEE LIMITED
acting as Security Agent

£27,680,000 SINGLE CURRENCY TERM FACILITY 
AGREEMENT 

Pinsent Masons 


























































































































































































































































































































